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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This Mediterranean Revival style structure comprises 28,000 square feet,
on two floors - its overall dimensions are 252 x 82 feet, with a 60 foot tower
over the main entrance.

The physical condition of the structure is excellent, having been main-
tained since its erection in 1926 as a high school, then a Junior High School
until June of 1976. The only significant deterioration is in the wood framed
windows which are repairable and restorable,

Footings are concrete, 6 feet wide at the tower, 3% feet wide at the two
storey elements and 2 feet wide at the single storey elements. There is a small
basement (whose walls and floor are reinforced concrete) under the stage area of
the auditorium,

Each of the two storeys is 11' - 6" clear height. The first floor framing
is full size 2 x 10's at 16" centers over a pier and girder system. The second
floor is full 2 x 16's at 16" centers and has a double floor separated by 2 x 2's
at 12" with “®deadening felt" between layers. The roof framing is principally
2 x 6 trusses at 28" with 7/8" sheathing, covered by mission tiles.

Exterior and some interior walls are fabricated of solid hard-fired brick
masonry with cement (not lime) mortar. Even the south walls, subject to the
harshest weathering conditions, show no evidence whatsoever of deterioration.
Masonry wall thickness, depending on location, varies from 20" to 8". Interior
partitions are principally wood studs, with wood lath and plaster. The lath and
plaster also occur over furring at the masonry walls. Wainscots and other high
use areas are finished with Keenes Cement Plaster for additional hardness and
durability.

The dimensions of the auditorium are approximately L4O' x 60'. There is a
balcony. The ceiling height varies from 22' to 25' with the slope of the floor.
Large, round arched windows penetrate the side walls and a shallow segmented arch
forms the procenium over the stage. Large cast plaster rosettes decorate the
ceiling, acting as lighting fixture canopies as well as ventilation grilles.

Along with the main school structure, a gymnasium and a shop building, both
wood framed with plastered exterior, comprised the 15.5 acre campus. These two
latter structures have been destroyed to provide playground space for a new school
building complex recently completed to the east of the original building on the
same six-block site. The preservation proposal is for lease of the old school
site of about three acres and the purchase of the building for either a private
or a county office building complex. Now that the building has been vacated by
the students, the unsightly "dog-house" entrance canopies have been dismantled, re-
storing the exterior to its.original appearance. The "dog-houses" were added as
a safety measure after the Oroville Earthquake of August 1, 1975. Inspection by
structural engineers indicated, however, that no damage was suffered by the struc-
ture during said earthquake. (See reports of Sauer, Marr and Associates, Consult-
ing Engineers, dated July 17, 1975 and October 3, 1975, Exhibit A and Exhibit B

respectively)
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SPECIFIC DATES September 6, 1926 BUILDER/ARCHITECT  George C. Sellon

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Architectural Significance. The old Colusa High School building is one of the few
intact pre-Field Act schools of the Mediterranean Revival type of architecture that swept
the Nation, particularly California, in the decade following World War I. It is the
product of a boom era and reflects a degree of quality, in construction, materials and
workmanship, we are unlikely to ever see again,

Architecturally, this structure represents one of the most outstanding examples of
this period. It boasts a richness and diversity of detailing unexcelled in a school
building of its size. The virtuosity of the-salmon colored brickwork ornamentation is
splendid, with variations in bonding, soldier coursing, arches, oriels, bevels and
fillets all beautifully and imaginatively executed. The richness of the terra cotta
ornamentation is evident at each major entrance and opening which is enthusiastically
embellished, In addition, there are screens and grilles at selected windows, ornately
fabricated of wrought iron or wood turnings, as well as original lunette decorated wood
shutters at other small windows. The composition culminates in a sixty-foot tower, and
the entire structure is roofed with heavy mission tiles.

The total result is highly decorative and highly romantic. It represents an en-
thusiastic and high-spirited dedication to beauty for beauty's sake that now rarely exists.
The structure is an irreplaceable artifact in the heritage of Colusa and the entire sur-
rounding North Valley area, -

Historical Significance. The structure commonly referred to as the old Colusa Junior
High School main building stands as a continuing demonstration of how a rural, agricul-
tural community can provide an aesthetically attractive, yet economical, efficient and
durable education facility within a limited budget dictated by the people's ability to

pay.

This school was built during 1925-26 as the third building used by the then Colusa
Union High School District and replaced a structure erected in 1903. This latter school,
designed to accomodate 75 pupils had become outmoded when district enrollment had reached
1l in 1925. The new school building and the nearby gymnasium and shop structures were
planned for 300 students,

The high school built during 1925-26 was financed by a $200,000. bond issue approved
by the voters of the district on April 11, 1925 by an overwhelming majority of 670 to
166. The amount of the bond issue represented a compromise between the district's farm-
ers, who through a Committee of 10, had sought an issue of $150.000. and the school
trustees' desire for a facility costing $250,000. The agricultural community, which
provided the district's economic base then as it does now, was experiencing hard times
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The westerly 3.03 of blocks 98 and 111 as said blocks are shown on the map
of plot of Colusa on file in the Office of the County Clerk and Recorder of
the County of Colusa. Bounded on the west by 10th Street, on the south by
Fremont Street, on the north by Webster street, and on the east by the
Colusa Intermediate School grounds, o
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and thus demanded economy as well as functional utility. That the school trustees and
architect could also produce a building of such beauty that a significant and substantial
cross-section of the community today desires that it be preserved for posterity is testi=-
mony to what can be done given the will, the inspiration, and the skill in designing
buildings within limited budgets.

The architect who designed the structure was George C. Sellon of Sacramento who, the
Colusa Daily Sun reported, had constructed the California Security Life Building where
his office was located, a number of high schools including those in Yuba City, Newman
and Wheatland, and the Tehama County Courthouse at Red Bluff,

But not to be overshadowed is the fact that much effort was put into the building's
planning and construction by community leaders serving on and with the district's school
board. A dentist, Dr. E. S. Holloway, gave much of his time as a volunteer consultant
to the school trustees during the planning and construction period. He had previously
in 1918 given nearly all of his time to overseeing the construction of the Colusa Elemen-
tary School built that year and thus had valuable experience to offer.

The school board acted as the contractor for the project and on August 17, 1925 re-
ceived bids and awarded contracts to eight different firms for various phases of the con-
struction work.

By October 24, 1925, the initial phases of the project had reached a point that the
cornerstone could be laid by the Grand Lodge of Masons in California with the tradition-
al rites being conducted by The Most Worshipful Albert E. Boynton, grand master, and other
grand officers.

The principal speaker following the cornerstone ceremony, was the Honorable William
M. Finch, formerly of College City, who was then the presiding justice of the District
Court of Appeals.

Construction of the school progressed through the winter and into the spring. It
was hoped that the last senior class to use the 1903 high school could be graduated from
the new high school. However, the finishing work was not completed in time and the
new high school was not opened for fill use by the students and faculty until Septem-
ber 6, 1926, On this same day the facility was dedicated in impressive ceremonies con-
ducted by the Grand Parlor of the Native Sons of the Golden West. The principal address
was delivered by Judge Fletcher A. Cutler of Burlingame,

A plague was placed procleiming that "This Building (is) Dedicated to TRUTH, LIBERTY,
TOLERATION by the Native Sons of the Golden West, September 6, 1926.% The sand used in
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mixing the mortar for placing the plaque came from each of the state's 58 counties and
the water was taken from old wells at the missions of the state.

In describing the new school structure to the district's Parent-Teacher Associ-
ation on October 27, 1925. Principal Noel H. Garrison termed the facility "a plant
of which Colusa may well be proud.....the building will be efficient and thoroughly
up~to~date." And at the dedication, Principal Garrison, according to the Colusa
Daily Sun, "stressed the fact that the Board of Education has earnestly and conscien-
tiously tried to make the $200,000. appropriated go as far as possible and to get
the most out of every dollar,."

The building has served the community as a public school during the 50 years of
its life time. 1In 1964 it was converted from a high school (grades 9 through 12) to
a junior high school (grades 6 through 8) with no structural modifications.

Today the old Colusa High School stands majestically on Tenth Street (State
Highway 20), the main entrance to the City of Colusa from Interstate 5. It is situ-
ated among stately old elm trees and offers a scene of beauty and tranquility to all
who pass by.

For fifty years visitors and county and city residents have all enjoyed the
building's architectural beauty. It is a fitting introduction to Colusa, a symbol
of heritage and tradition in which, and for which, residents have always had pride
and respect. It is a fine old school which many citizens and their children and
their children's children have attended. It is difficult to imagine Colusa without it.

Landscape Architectural Significance. The landscape design employs an expanse
of green grass lawns to provide a park-like setting for the dominant red brick school
building. This park-like setting continues beyond the two blocks of the school site
on Tenth Street to the adjacent Will S. Green park on the north,

Large, stately old elm trees which line Tenth Street on the west side of the site
are an integral part of the image 'of Colusa and are protected, as are all the old
trees of Colusa, by a special City Tree Commission. These trees frame the picturesque
setting of the old brick school situated in the center of the spacious lawns which are
dotted by a few additional mature trees.

The grounds have been well-maintained over the years. Informal shrubberies form
the foundation planting surrounding the building, and the total effect is one of har-
mony between structure and environment. The scene is reminiscent of the grace, beauty
and dignity of former days long past. :

GPO 892 455
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